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Eongress of the United Slates
Wagbingten, B.d.

January 28, 2003

The Honerable George J. Tenet
Director of Central Intelligence
Washington, DC 20505

Dear Director Tanet:

As you know, the final report of the Joint inquiry into the events of September 11
has baan submitted to the Intelligence Community for declassification review, We loak

forward to early release of the public report so thet efforis at reforms can be
accslerated.

Having been privileged lo lead this bipartisan, bicameral investigation fast year,
we are committed to working in the current Congress to help secure implemsniation of
its recommendalions. In furtherance of that goal, we are writing lo the President and
heads of departments and agencies about portions of the Joint Inquiry’s
recommendations that may be of particular concem to them.

Our first recommendation calls for establishment of a Director of Natlonal
Inteltigence, or DNI, who in addition to being the President’s principal inteiligence
adviser “shall hava the full range of management, budgetary and personnel
responsibiiiies needed to make the U.S. Inteligence Community operate as a coherent
whole." To help promaota both strong leadership of the entire intelligence Community
leadership and an effective CIA, the Joint Inquiry also recommended that Congress
provide that the DNI not simultanecusly serve as director of the CIA or any other
agency. In considering this recommendation, the Congress will certainly, wa believe,
benefit from leaming of your views about the strengthening of the role of haad of the
Intetligence Community.

A number of the recommendations that follow address proposed tasks of the
Direclor of Naticnal Intslligence, but as that reform will require study and deliberation,
for the immediate future those further recommendaticns are directed to the Director of
Central Inteliigence as the present statutory head of the Intelligence Community.

The Jaint Inquiry fourd that prior to September 11 neither the U.S. Govemment
as a whole nor the Intelligence Community had a comprehensive countertemorist
strategy. One of ocur recommendations calls on the National Security Coundit, In
conjunction with key agency and depariment heads, to prepare such a strategy for the
President's approval. The recommendation states that the strategy should be




The Honorable Georgea J. Tenet youtruth.weebly.com
January 29, 2003
Page 2

"government wide,” apply both “home and abroad,” and include “the growing terrorism
threat posed by the proliferation of weapons of mass destruction and asscciated
technoiogies.” The recommendation asks that this strategy identify and fully engage the
Intelligence as well as foreign policy, economic, military and law enforcement elements
thal are “critical 1o a comprehensive bluaprint for success in the war against tefrorism.”
The Direclor of Central intelligence’s full participation in this overall process will be
essential, as will the DCl's davelopment of the Intelligence Community component of
the full strategy. The Joint Inquiry recommended that the Intelligence Community’s
camponent of the overall strategy include a number of important items, among them
development of human sources to penetrale terrofist organizations and networks.

To provide to the Cangress and Executive Branch policymakers intelligence
estimates on terrorism, the Joint Inquiry has recommended establishment on the
National Intalligence Council of the positicn of National Intelligence Officer for
Terorism. The recommendation suggests that the person holding this position also
assist the Intelligence Community in developing a program for strategic analysis.

Another recommendation addresses the need for Congress and the
Administration to ansure development within the Department of Homeland Security of
an effective all-source termonsm infermation fusion center, as mandated by the
Homeland Security Act of 2002. The success of that fuslon center will depend, as the
recommendation states, on the center's “full and timaly access to all counterterrorism-
related intelligence information, including ‘raw’ supperting data as needed.” Your acticn
to ensure full cooperation between the entire Intelligence Community (including, of
course, the CIA) and the Depanment of Homeland Security will be fundamental to the
success of this vital reform. We applaud the President’'s anncuncament of the
establishment of a new Terrorist Threat Integration Center, which we understand will be
located under the Director of Central Intelligence. The important challange, we believe,
is to assure the full and harmonious implementation of both the information fusion
requirement of the Homeland Security Act and the center that the President anncunced.

The recommendations include a list of significant reforms thal the intelligence
Committees believe are essential for strengthening the FBI's domestic intelligence
capability. in regard to these critically needed reforms, the Joint inquiry has
recommended that Congress shouid direct that the head of lhe intelligence Community,
together with the Attorney General and the Secretary of Homeland Security, should
report to Congrass on the FBI's progress. The report should include "the specific
manner in which a new domestic Intelligence service could be established in the United
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States. recognizing the need to enhance national security while fully protecting civil
liberties.”

The Committees exprassed their strong conviction that “the Intelligence
Community's employees remain ils greatest rasource.” They recommend that the head
of the inteiligence Community “should require that measures be implemented to greatly
enhance the recruitment and development of a workforce with the intelligenca skills and
expertise needed for success in countenterrorist efforts.” Several padticular actions are
set forth in the recommendation. One is that Intelligence Community agencies should
expand and Improve counterterrorism training, including about information sharing
among law enfarcement and inteiligence personnel, tha use of the Foreign Intelligance
Surveillance Act, and watchlisting. The recommendation includes steps to improve
Intelligence Community language capabilities and the utllization of the skills and
experience of retired parsonnel. It calls on the Intelligence Community to “enhance
recruitment of a more ethnically and culturally diverse workforce.”

A further personnel recommendation propases, in part, that Congress enact
legistation, modeled on the landmark Goldwater-Nichols Department of Defense
Reorganization Act of 1986, to help instill the concept of “jointness” throughout the
Intelligence Community and ensura that its companents will work more closely together
than has been the case. The mechanisms identified in the recommendation Include
such things as joint tours for intelligence and law enforcement personnel as well as
incentives for joint service throughout the intelligence Community. In daveloping these
ideas, Congress would benefit from the Administration’s delailed proposals.

The Joint Inquiry identified several important objectives conceming classified
information, Including expanding access by federal agencies outside the Intefligence
Community, by state and local aulthorilies, and by the American public. To this end, we
recommended that the Direclor of Central Intelligence, in consultation with the heads of
key components of the intelligence Community, including the Atormey General, should
report to the Intelligence Committees on “proposals for a new and more reallstic
approach to the processes and structures that have governed the designation of
sensitive and classifled information.” The report should also address “proposals to

protect against the use of the ciassification process as a shield to protect agency self-
interest.”

The Congress and the Nation as a whole will be grateful for your attention and
response 1o thase and other matters identified in the course of the Joint Inquiry.
Further, we are confident that the Congress will benefit from other recommendations
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that you might have for legislative or administrative action to improve the Nation's
counterterrorist capabilities,

Sincerely, /

Bob Graham Portar G

Chairman, Senate Intelligence Chairman, House Intelligence
Committee, 107™ Congress Committee, 107 and 108

Congressas

R

Rld'uard Shelby Nancy Pelosi

Vics Chairman, Senate Intefligence Ranking Minority Member, House
Committes, 107™ Congress

Intelligance Committee, 107" Congrass
and Member ex officio (as Minority
Leader}, 108" Congrass

Enclosure: As stated
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PART FOUR—FINDING, DISCUSSION AND NARRATIVE REGARDING CERTAIN
SENSITIVE NATIONAL SECURITY MATTERS

20. Finding: While in the United States, some of the September 11 bijackers were in
contact with, znd received support or assistance fromu, individuals who may be covpected to
the Saudi Government. There is information, primarudy {rom FBI sources, that at least owo
of those individuals were alleged by some 1o be Szudi intelligence officers. The Juint
Inquiry’s review confirmed that the [ntelligenee Community alse has information, much of
which has yet to be independently verilied, indicatipe that individuals associated with the
Saudi Government in the United States may have other ties to al-Qna’ida zod other terrorist
groups. The FBI and CIA have informed the Joint Inguiry that, since the September 11
attacks, they are treating the Saudi issue seriously, but buth still have only a limited
understanding of the Saudi Government’s ties to terrorist elements.  In their testimony,
neither CIA nor FBI witnesses were able to identify defiuitively the extent of Saudi support
for terrorist activity globally or within the United States and the exfent to which such
support, if it exists, is knowing or inadvertent in nature. The FBI's Washington Tieid
Otficecreated a squad devoted to _
R TR T T s T B s )
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at Jeast in part due to the Joint Inquiry’s focus on this issue, did the Bl and CIA establish
a working group to address the Saudi issue. In the view of the Joint Inquiry, this gap in
1.8, intellizence coverage is unacceptable, viven the magnitude and immediacy of the
potential risk to U.S. national security, The Intelligence Conununity needs to address this

aren of concern as aggressively and a8 quickly as possible

Discussion: One reason for the limited understanding 15 that it wns anly after Seplember

11 that the U.S. Governunent began 1o aggressively investigate this 1ssuc, Pror to September

1%, the FBI apparently did no! focus investigative resources DI'.._
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September 11, 2001, the FEI received “no reporting from: any ‘member of the Intelligence

Conununity™ that there was ;».— presence in the { Inned States.

According 1o vanous FBI documents and at least one ClA memorandum, some of the
Septembder 11 hijackers, while in the United States, apparently had contacts with mdividuals who
may be connected (o the Sauds Government. While the Joint Ingmiry uncovered this matenal
during the course of its review of FBI and CIA documents, it did not allempt to investigatc and
assess the accuracy and significance of this information ir;d:pc:n‘lrnti}.x reeognizing that such a
ask wouid be beyond the scope of this Jomnt Inquiry. Insiead, the Joint Inquiry relerred a
dotailed comnpliation of information uncavered by the Inguiry in documents and interviews to the
FRT and CIA for further investigation hy the Intelligence Community and, if appropriate, law
enforcement agencies. A briel summary of the availuble informution regarding some of these

individuals is tHustzative for purpases of this report

Omar al-Bayoumi., The FBEI has received numerous reports from individuals 1 the
Mushin commuty d:s:ir.g, hack to 1999, allegnng thet al-Bayoumi may be a Saudh

intelligence afficer. FBI files suggest that al-Bayoumi provided substantial agsistanes o

lijackers Khalid al-Mihdhar and b 1 after they arrived m San Diego in
February 2000. Al-Bayouru met the hijackers al a pubhe place shortiy after his meeting
with an individual at the Saudi consulate and there are indicztions i the

cacounter with the hijackers may not have been accidental. Dunng thie same timeframe,
al-Bayoumi had extensive contact with Sandi Governmient esigblislunents 1 the Uniled
States and received financial support fiom a Saudi company afiihated with the Saudi
Ministry of Defense. According ta FBI ‘Lius,- at the company sasd that al-
Bayoumi received a monthly salary even though he had been there on only one vcezsion
This support increased substantially in Aprnii 2000, two marths after the hijackers amved
in San Dhego, decreased slichtly in December 2000, and stayed at that same level until

August 2001, That company reportedly had nes to Usamez Bin Ladin and al-Qa’ida. In
addition, the FBI] datermined that al- Bayoumi was in contact with several individuals
under FBI tnvestigation and with the Holy Land Foundation, which has been under

investigation as a fundraising font for Hamas;
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(sama Bassnan. Dassnan may have been in conlact with al-Mihdher and al-Hazmi

during their ime in San Diego. Bassnan was a close assoziate of zl-Bayoum and Omar

Bakarbashat, another one of the hijackers’ close associtates. He 2lso lived across the
street from the ]'1i_?'3:.1;v:rs, and made r comment ‘o an FBI asset that he dic maore than al-
Bayoumi did for the hijackers. According to an FBI document, Basnan told another
individual that ae met al-Hazmi through al-Bayown: and later that he met two of the
hijackers through al-Bayoumi. He also told the asset that al-Bayvoumi was amested
bocavse he knew ol Hozm: and el-Mihdher very well. The document goes on to state that
Bassnan and al-Bayoum: have been “close to each other for & [ong tume.” Bessnan has

many ties to the Saudi Govemment, including past employment by the Saudi Arabian

Education Mission, referred to in FBI documents z= [
—. The FBI alsv received reports fiem
individuals in the Muoslim community allaging that Bassnan might be 2 Saudi intelligence

officer. According to a CIA memo, Bassnan reportedly reteived funding and possibly a
fake passport from Saudi Govemment officials, He and his wife have received financial
support from the Szudi Ambassador to the United Stztes and his wile A CLA report also
indicates that Bassnar traveled to Houston tn 2002 and met with an individual who was

rip 2 member of the Saudi Royal Family
provided Bassnan with a significant amount of cash, FB! mnformation indicates that
Dassnan is an extremist and supporter of Usama Bin Ladin, and has been conngeted to the

Eritrean islamic Jihad and the Blind Shaykh;

Shaykh al-Thumairy. According to FBI decumenis and a CIA memorandum, al-1luzmi
znd al-Mihdhar ray have been in contact with Shaykh al-Thumairy, an accredited
diplomat af the Sanci Consulate in Los Angeles and one of the “imams" at the King
Fehad mosque in Culver City, California. Also according 1o rL_ documents, the mosgue
butlt in 1998 from funding provided by Saudit Arabia’s Crown Pnince Abdulaziz.

The mosyue is reportedly attended by members of the Saud: Copsulste in Los Angeles

i 1s widely recognized for its anti-Westem views,

SN R -
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Saleh al-Flussaven, 1o Seprember 2001, Saleh al-Hussayen, repertedly a Saudi Intenion
Ministry official, stayed at the same hotel in Hemndon, Virginia where al-Hazmi was
staying. While al-Hussayen claimed aller September 1] not to know the hijackers, FBI
agents believed he was being deceptive. He was able to depart the United Stales despite

FI31 efforis 10 lecate and re-interview him; and

dullah Bin Ladin, Abduilak Bin [Ladin claims t0 work {orthe Saud: Embassy in
Washington, D.C. as an admimstiative officer. He is identified by the FBI as Usame Din
Ladin's half brother. He 1s a close friend of Mohammed Quadir-Harunan, & possible

associate of Mohammed Atia and Marwan al-Shehhi prior to September 11, 2001,

The Joint Inquiry alsc found other indications (hat individeals connected to the Sauci

Govemment have ties {o teronist networks, including:

The CLA and FBI have identified the Ton Tamiyzh Mosque in Culver City as & site of
extremist-related activity. Several subjects of FBI investigalions prior to Sepicmeber 11
had close connections to the mosque and are believed to have laundered money through
this moesque to non-profit orgamzatons overseas affiliated with Uszma Bin Ladin. In ao
interview, an FBI agent said he belicved that Sawd: Govemment money wa

lanndered throngh the mosque,

Another Saudi national with ciose ties (o the Sandi Royal Family, _, is the

subject of FB1 counterterrorism investigations and reportedly was checking security at

the United States' southwes: border in 1999 and discussing the possibility of mnfiltrating

individuals into the United States;

According to FB! documents, several of the phone niumbers found in the phone hook of
Abu Zubaida, 2 senjor al-Qu’ida operative captured m Pakistan in March 2002, could be
linked, at least indizecly, 1o tels pl‘on*‘ numbers in the United States, One of those U.S.

pumbers is subscribed 1o by the ASPCOL Corporation, which 1s located in Aspen,

e
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Colorado, and manages the affairs of the Colorado residence of the Saudi Ambassador

Bandar. The FBI noted that ASPCOL has an ualisted telephone number. A November

18, 2002 FBI response to ithe Joint Inquiry states that “CLA traces have reveaied no direct

links between numbers found in Zubzaida's phone book and numbers in the United
Stazes.”

5

According to an FBI document, the telephone number of a bodyguard at the Sauds

28

Embassy in Washirgton, DC, who some have alleged may te 2 [
_ wis aiso found in Abu Zubaida's pozsesrione; and

h‘3"-0:35_ Al-Qudhacein was involved m & 1999 incident aboard

an Amenca West flight, which the FBI's Phoenix aflice now suspects may have been &

According to an FBI agent i Phoemix, the FBI suspects Mohammed al-Qudhacein of

“dry run” to test airline security.  During the flight, al-Qudhaesin and his associate asked
the flight attendants a variety ufsuspit‘iuﬂs questions; z1-Qudha=ein then etiempted o

enter the cockpit on two occssions. Al-Qudhacen and his assoziate were flying to

V3T = b

Washingion, D C. 1o attend a party at the Saudi Embassy, and both claimed that their

“,--u

s were paid for by the Szudi Embassy. Dunng the course of'its inveatigetions, the
FBI has discovered taat both al-Qudhasein and the otker individual involved in this

tncident had connection

Finally, the Committees are panticularly concerned about the serious nature of allegations

o b sl

comtained in 2 C1A memotandum foond by the Joint Inquiry Staffin the files of the FBI's San
Dicgo Field Office That memorandum, which discusses alleged financial connections between

he September 11 hijackers, Sandi Government officials, and members of the Saudi Royai

Family, was drafted by 2 ClA offi ccr_, relying prunarily ot

information fram FBI files. The CIA officer sent it to the CTC to determine whether ClA had

=i

additional information. [e alse provided a copy lo the FBI agent respons
avestigation of one of the individuals discussed in the memorandum. Des i wonal

implications of the ClA memorandum, the FBI agen: included the memorandun in an mdiyidua

ke

case file and did not forward 1t to FB] Headquarters. FBI Headquarters, therefore, was unuwaze

LA g =
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of statements in the memorandum until the Joint Inquiry brought the memorandum’'s

implications to the Bureau’s attention
p

Possible Sacdi Governmeut Connections to Terrorists and Terrorist Groups

While in the United States, some of the September 11 hijackers were in contact with, and
recaived support or assistance from, individeals who may be connected o the Saudi
Govesanent. There 1s mionmation, fiow FBI suumtces, that at least two ol thuse individunals weic
alleged to be Saudi intelligence officers. The Joint Inquiry's review confirmed that the
Inielhgsnce Comununity also has information, much of which remains speculative and yet Lo be
independently venfied, indicating that Saudi Gevernment oificials m the United States may have

piner ties 10 al-Ga'ida and other tetronst groups.

The Commiltees are particula:ly concerned about the serious nature of ailegations
contamned in a CIA memorandum found within the files of the FBI's San Dieyo Field Office
That memorandum, which discusses alleged financial connections between the Sepiember 11

hijackers, Saudi Govemnment officizls, and members of the Saudi Royal Family, weas drafied by 2

cia oficer [ . =1y ¢ primacily on information from FBI files

In their testimony before the Joint Inguiry, neither the C1A nor the FBI was able to

definitvely identify for these Comumittecs the extent of Saudi support for termorist activity
globally or within the United States and the extent to which such suppor, if it exists, 1s
intentional or inocent in nature. Both the FBI and CIA have indicated 1o the Conumitices that

they are now aggressively pursuing Saudi-related terronism issues.

Prior to Septernber 11, the FBI apparently did not focus in-.'c.t_;:it:znw-.-
the United States due o Saudi Arabia’s status as an Amencan “aliy"'.—
B - roorescotative of the FBI's [ (-t io closed
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hicarings that, prior to September 117, the TRT received “no reporting from any member of the

elligence Community” that there :s a_ presence in the United Stales.

It should be clear that this Joint Ingquiry has made no final detenniuations as to the
reliability or sufficicney of the information regarding these issucs thet we found contained in I
and ClA documents. [t was not the t2sk of this Joint Inguiry to conduct the kind of sxtensive
investigation that would be required to determined the true sigmficance of 2
connections to the Sandi Governmeni. On the one hand, 115 possidble that thess kands of
connections could suggesi. es indicated in 2

“incontrovertible evidence that there 1s support for these terronsts within the Saud
Govemunent.” On the other hand, it is elso pessible that further investigation of these allegatons

could reveal l=zinmate, and lnozent, ").pld.t':l jons for these associations.

Given the serious aational security implications of this information, however, the
leadership of the Joint Inquiry is refermng the staif’s compilation of reievant information o boik
the FBI aud the CIA for investigative review and appropriate investigative and inteiligence

action,

Possible Couucctions Between the September 11 Hijackers and Saudi Government Officials
in the Upited States

In reviewing FBEI documents and the CIA memorandum, the Juint Inguiry Stail has

examined information suggesting that:

One individual who provided assistance to Nawal :

he connected to the Saudi Goverrment. A seennd o

contact with al-Hazmi and Al-Mindhar alsa has tics to the Saudi Govemment, including

coanections (o the Sawii Ambassador to the United States. Theie is reporning in FBI filzs
L persons have alleged thut both of these individuals may be Saud) mizlhgence

l'\‘nl___ 43
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The September 11 hijackers may have been in contact with ether Saudi Govermmen?

officials in the United States pnor to the September 11 attacks; and

Saudi Government officials in the Unilzd States may have ties t¢ Usama Bin Ladin

terrorist network.

Omar al-Bayoumi and Osama Bassnan

Two mdividuals known to the FBI prior te September 13, 2001 - Omur al-Bzyoumi and
Osarpa Bassnan — may have provided assistance or supparl o al-Hazmi and al-Mibdhar while the
two hijackers-to-be were living in San Diego. While the documentary evidence that al-Bayouwmni
provided assistance to al-llarmi and al-Mihdhar is solid, the files contain only limited evidence

that Osama Bassnan had contacts with the two mdividuals,

When al-Hazmi and al-Mihdhar moved to San Diego, ai-Bayoumi provided them with
considerable assistance, Before the hyjackers moved in with the long-time FBI mformant. 1
slayed at al-Bayoumni's apartraent for several days until al-Bayeumi was able to find them an
apartment. Al-Bavoumi then co-signed their lease and may have paid their first month’s rent and

scurity deposit.' Afier al-Hazmi and 21-Mihdhar moved into their own apartment, al-Bayoumi
threw a party to welcome them to the San Diego community He also tasked Modhar Abduliah,
another individual from the Islamic Center of San Diego (ICSD), 1o help them get acclinated 1o
the United States. Abdullah served as their trauslator, helped them get deivers” licenses, and
ssssted them in locaing Qi sctoo).
(5,285 2005 ST

' The FBI notzs, i its November 18, 2002 response that “finanen! resords indicate 2 cash depomt of the samu
amoust as the cashier's chezk into illﬁayo.]::a.i s bank account un the same day, which sugg that the hijackety
retmbursed hime” FBI November 18 Respanse, 3. However, enother FDI docuinens, dated Octobar 14, 2002
appears (o reach a shightly different conclusion This document states that a2 review of Khalid Al .’»""*' 1r and
Mawaf Al-Hazmi's bank records indicate there 15 o bank dosummentation thet supports the reimburszment of [the
rent money!, or any monies to Oiner Al-Bayoum: fom al-Hazmi or Al-Midbac.”

S o
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Dunng the post-September L1 invesiigation, the FIBI discovered thal :.I-B.:}-’n'.:::‘-i n

more extensive ties to the Saudi Governinent than previously realized. In fact, accord
October 14, 2002 FBI document, al-Bayoumi has “extensive lies Lo the Saudi Goverament.’

nections identified by the FB1 are

Al-Bayoumi had been an accountant at the Saudi Civil Aviation Administration from
1976 10 1993, when he relocated to the United States;
According to (he FBI, al-Bayoumi was in requent contact with the Em

Ministry of Defense, responsible for air traffic control,

The FRBI has also located reconds, indicating that al-Bayvoum: received $20,000 from

baha e

the Saud: Ministry of Finance at one point;

When al-Bayoumi applisd to schools in the United Sta

from the Szudi Embazssy, which stated that he was getting 2 full scholarship Som the

Government of Saudi Arabia; and

While in San Diego, al-Bayoum: was raceiving inoncy from the Saudi Ministry of

Defense through a Saud: company called “Ercan™ — of that company

informaed the FBI aftzr September 11, 2001 that, alihouzh zl-Bayoumi only showed

uy &

up at the company on one occasion, he received a monthly sz2lary and ailoewances,

— stated that, at first, he attempted (o refuses to pay al-Sayoumi & monthiy

salary, but he was told that his company would lose their contract if he did not pay

. _ infarmed the FRIT that at the time, he attrihited thie so Saud

corruplion,

Al-Bayoumi alse had frequent contact with 3aud! establistunecats i the United States
a revizw of telephone tol! records, the FBI leamned that el-Bayoumi called Saudi Goverminent
tablishbments in the United States almost 100 times between January and May of 2000

According to the FRI, sl-Bayoumi was in contact with at least three irdividuzls at the Saudh
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in Washinglon, DC; twoindividuals a: the Saudi Arzben

Washington, DC, and threz individuals at the Saudi Consulat

= e

Fayoumi”s [ . > =50 ¢isoovered that he had the p

individual at the Saud Consulate in London.

Twa [ormer San Diepo asenis addressed the 1ssue of whether al-Bavoumi was an

buence officer at the October 9, 2002 closed heartng. The former case agent who handled

i] acted like a Saud: intellizence ofiicer, in my oo And of he was
cers, winch it looks like he was, if he signed leascs, 17 he provided

nent of sume son, then 1 would say that there's a clear

a connectonn boetween Saudi intel] sence and U8l

1al Agentin Charge in San Diego test tha the FB) received

[ would say halfa dozen” reports from individuals who believed that al-Bayoum:

- - T =T e NI A ot = Ny wurleidye s
was ¢ Saudi intelligence officer. The FBI's November 187 response 15 inconsistent as ke thy

)3 - LR SRS

the FR) corrently 1s designatine al-Bayoumi as o suspected Saudy inielbeence officer. In s

Qeptamber 117, but the response also states that “there is no evidence™ 1o conclude that al-

Buvoumi is a Saudi inielligence of]

The FBI had received reponting om a religbic source well prior to Septen
|

s . 1 . I g e e A 1 .
ingeming t -Bayoumi might be o Saudi inzelligenee officer. Al-Bavo

Ve JICLEES o ct af money from Saud! Arabin. despite the fact that he did not appear

o hold 2 10b On one oceasion prior to September 11 "Bl reeaived mformation that @

(B L

Bavoun had recerved S400.000 from Saudr Arabia to help fund a new mosque 1 Sam Lhiege

Mie FRT conducted & countertermonsim imvestigation on al-Bavouny m 1998 and 1992, but closed

the investization at that pomt.
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simce September 11, 2001 FEI investigation revealed that al-Bayouan has some tics o

crroist elements. Pa .’AL]LT.:: CD'Amure, the Executive Assistant Director for Counteleronsm

and Countenintelligence testifzed 1o the October 9, 2002 ! heanng ibat

{w]e've been talking with l.t'.c- Governenent about collection on z2a individual

named _ who has ties 1o 21-Qa'ida, who has ties 1o Bavoumi

In addition, the FBI reported the results of thuir search of ul-Bayeumi’ ST thet
«fler an exhaustive transiations of Bayoumi’s documents, it 1s clear that 1n Bayoumi's
COIT cs;-n::dcncu he is pm'-';dl.l" emdance o young Muslims and some of his writings can he

interpreted as jinadist.”

According to information acquired hy the FBI after September 11, 2001, al-Bayoum: alsa
noted on one of his school applications that he worked for a company calied "DallalvVAveo.”

According to the FBI, Ercan is 2 San Diego subcontractor of Dallah/Aveo, According 10 2

separate [Rocument, Daitlak and Avco are under the same umbrella company, Avce Dallah

Traus Arab, which is a subsidiary of Al Barakaat Invesunent and Development Company. Aves

'

Dallah reportedly holds the contracts for cleaning and meintenance at the three major airpurns i

the company has links to Usama Bin Ladin. FBI Headquariers was informed of the afhliation

between Dallab/Aveo and Al Barakaat in February 2001, but the San Dieso Field Otfice

ntly never got this infonmation,

ccording to FBI documents, al-Bayounu's pay mereased during the time that al-Ha
and al-Mikdhar were ir the United States. According 1o a recent [fnalysis of ties betweer
the terranst attacks and elements of the Savdi Government, hafore al-Hazmi and al-Milihzs
arrived in the U.S., al-Bayoumi generally received approximately $465 per nionth in
‘allowances.’” According to :h-:- document, in March 2000, & month afier al-Hazm ar
Mihdhar ertived in San Diego, his “allowances™ jumped to over §53700 2 month anl stayed
constant until December 2000, when al-Hazmi left San Diego. Al-Bayoumi's allowances were
then decreased o approximately $3,200 a month and stayed at that rate uctil al- Bayoumi left the

United States in August 2001, spproximately one month before the September 117 attacks.




'I":a-:-.u:n'..'_nrundun: dated July 2, 2002, incorrectly notad that al-Bayvoumi's

whtile Iiving in San Diego, was receiving $1200 a month from Prncess Halz Hint Suitan, the

w dhas -.- . - selabiy suiw
wifc of Prince Bandar, the Saud: Ambassador 1o the Unit e, The FBI1 has now confirmed
that only Osama Bassnan's wiftc received money directly from Prince Bandar's wife, but that al-

Bayoumi's wile azlempted io deposit three of the checks from Prince Bandar's wife, which wer

payable w Bassnan's wife, imto her own accounts.

The Joint Inquiry also found, in FDI files, information suggestn

: alsa been 1n contact with al-Mihdhar and al-Hazmi. including

Bassnan was a very close associaie of Omar al-Bayoumi's and was in leiephone
contact with ai-Bavoumi several tines a day while they wers both in Sun Dicgo
Bassnan also has close ties o 2 nuinber of other individuals connected ¢

1

hijackers, including Omar Bakarbachat, discussed helow, who s re

'Ui..I‘IIL.'IJl:: a3 Bassnan's brother-in-law;

According to an October 1H, 2001 FII doctment, Bassnan informed an asset that he

had met Nawaf al-Hazmi through al-Bavoumi. He went on w say (hat he et two of

the mineteen hijackers through Omar al-Bavoumi

also told the asset that al-Bayoumi was arrested beczuse he knew al-Hazmi and al-
Mihdbar very well, The document gozs on to state that Bessnan anil al-Bayoum
have been “close to each other for a long Ume™

snan lived i the apartment enmplex in San Dicgo across the street from al Ha

and al-Mikdhar,

Bassnan mads 2 comment (o an FBI sourse afler the Septemoaer

that he did more for the hiiackers than al-Bavou
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I'he FBI s aware of contact between the hijackers and a close friend of Bassnan's,
Khaled al-Kayed, a commercial airline pilot and certified thight instructor living
San Diego. Al-Kayed admitied to the FBI that in May 2000, 2] Mihdhar and al-

{azmi contacted him about learning to fly Boeing jet aircraf;

FBI documents speculate that Osama Bassnan _
—l— The FBI's November 18, 2002 response contends that this was

n zarly investigative theory based on asset rcporurL which the FBI has not been able 1o

— In 1992, while ac was living in Washinglon, DC, Bassnan histed s employment as
the Saudi Arabian Education Mission. FB1 documents state thal_

orroboratz. However, there is also additional information poss m'vt ¢ Bassnan i‘-

Bassnan also has othar ties to the Sandi Government. Bassnan's vafe recaived a monthly
stipenid from Princess FHaifa. In a recent search of Bassnan's residence, the FBI located c=,-p5r_--.a of
31 cashiers checks totaling $74,000, during the period Fobruary 22, 1999 w May 30, 200

These checks were payable to Bassnan's wife aud were drawn on the Riggs Bank account of
Prince Bandar's wife. The FBI has determined that there has been a standing order on Princess
Haifa's account since January 1999 to send $2000 a month to Bassnan's wife. Bassnan's wife
was allegadly receiving the funding for “nursing services,” but, according to the - docurnent,
there is no evidence that Bassnan's wife provided nursing services. [
RN O T T R e e e R |
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Omn at least one occasion, Bassnan received a check directly from Prince Bundar's
account. According to the FBL, on May 14, 1998, Bassnan cashad a check from Bandar in the
amourt of $15,000. Bassnan's wife als ived at least onz check directly from Bandar. She
also received one additional check from Bandar's wife, which she cashed on January §, 1998, for

510,000

AR e .
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in the October 9, 2002 hearing FBI Executive Assistant Director D Amuro commented

PSR

on this lunding:

J beljeve that we do have money going from Bandar's wife, 52,000 z month up to about
$64,000. What the money was for is what we don’t know.”

lot of different groups and pcoplc fom around l'r.: world. We've been dbl: to urn co\ T #
number of these.. .but meybe if we can discover that she gives to 20 different radical
groups, well, gee, maybe there's a puttern here.

The FBI has also developed additional information clearly indicating that Bassnan is an
extremist and supporter of Usama Bin Lacin. In 1993, the FEI became aware that Bassnan had
hosted a party for the Blind Shaykh at his house in Washington, DC in October 1992. Bassn
kas made many laudatory remarks to FBI zssets about Bin Ladin, referring to Bin Ladin as the
official Khalifate and the ruler of the Islumic world. According to an FBI asset, Bassnan spoke
of Bin Ladin “as :fhe were a pod,” Bassnan also stated to an FBI asset that he heard that the
U.5. Government had stopped approving visas for foreign students. Ue considered such
measures to be insufficient as there are already snough Muslims i the United States to destroy
the United States and make it an Islamic state within ten to fifleen years. According to F3I
documents, Bassnan also knew Bin Ladin's family in Saudi Arabia and speaks on his mobil

telephione with members of the family whe are living in the United States.

Phone Numbers Linking Abu Zubaida to 2 Company in the United States and a4 Saudi

Diplemat in Washington

On March 28, 2002 U.S. and coalition forces retrieved the telephone book af Abu

Zubaida, whom the U.S. Government has identified as a senior al-Qa’ida operational
coordinztor According to an FBI document, “a review of toll records has linked severzl of the
nurobers found in Zubaida's phonebonk with U.S. phone numbers” One of the numbers s

unlisted and subscribed to by the ASPCOL Comoration in Aspen, Colorado. On July 15,2002,
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FDBI Headquarters sent a lead to the Deaver Field Office requesting that it investigate this

connection. On September 19, 2002 agents of the Denver Field Office responded

they had completed their inttial investisation,
) F £

According to the FBI's Deaver Office, ASPCOL 15 the umbrelia corporation that
manages the affairs of the Colorado residence of Prince DBandar, the Saudi ambassador to the
United States. The facility is protected by Scimitar Security. Agents of the Den
noted that neither ASPCOL nor Scimitar Security is listed in the phonz bock or is easily
lesatable. In additzen, the Colorado Secrstary of State’s office hug ac record ef ASPCD The
Denver offics did not attempt o make any lecal inquiries about ASPCOL, as they believed ihat
any inquiries regarding ASPCOL would be quickly xnown by Prince Bandar’s employess. Duc
to the sensitivity of this matter, they decided to hold thelr investigation of ASPCOL in abeyance

until they received additional gindance from FBI Headquariers,

According 1o the FBI, the phone nmnber of an individual named _ of

MeL=an, Virgiria was found witinn the effects of Abu Zobaida. [ i reportedly 2
bodyguard at the Saudi Embassy in Washington, DC. The FBI now suspects that hemay be a
—_ In 1 Sepiember 17, 2002 document, the FBI notes that the Buraau s
opening &n investigation ;\u- due o the size and value of his residence and his suspicious
activity in approaching 1.S. Intelligence Community personnel. It alee appears tha R

fias been in contact wi:h_. which is located ;.L-
— in McLean, Virginia. The FBI has identified this address os the address of
I'mnce Bandar, According to the r’:- is oficially a driver for the Saudi Embassy.
R o oer was also lnked 1o ASPCOL, Prince Bandar’s wnbrella compary locatec in

Colorado.

It should be noted thet the FBi's Navember 18, 2002 response stales that “CIA maces

have revealed no direct (cmpf‘..mis added) links berween numbers found 1n Zubaide’s phone book

and numbers o the United States.™

" I e
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z U.S, Govemment also located another Virginia number at an Usama Bin Ladin

safehouse in Pakistan. The number is subscribed to by an individual named [
Y - :nicrvicwed by the FETin June

2002. He could not explain why his number ended up at a safehouse 1 Palastan, but stated that

he regularly provides services to 2 couple whe are personal essistents to Prince Bandar This

E{J:J;'!!':'.\.' dnver is an individual nzmed [ . 10 15 assigned to the Saudi
sassy in Washington, DC. According to [ rsulerly called

business and frequently travels back and forth to Pakistan.

Other Saudi Government Officials in the United States Who May Have Been in Contac
with the September 11 Hijackers

Among the individuals whe may have been assoc:ates of the al-Ilazmi and al-Mihdhar
was Shayich al-Thumairy. According to '.lt:-m:murcm’mu. reviewed by the Joint Inquiry
Staff, “initial indications are thet al-Thumairy may have had a physical or financial connection i
al-MHazmi and al-Mihdhar, but we zre still looking at this pessibility.” Al-Thumairy 1s an
accredited diplomat at the Saudi Consulate in Los Angeles and is also considered one of the

“imams’” at the King Fahad Mosgue in Culver City, California. —

According to FBI documents, the King Fahad mosque was built in 1598
the Seudi Arabian Crown Proince Abduleziz. The mosque is attended by members of the
Saudi Consulate in Los Angeles and 15 widely known {or its anti-Weslern views.  TBI
documents indicate that Mohdhar Abdullah drove al-Ilazmi and al-Mihdhar to the King Fahad

Mosque. before al-Mindhar rewmed to Saudi Arabia.

Severzl individuals on the East Coast whem the hijackers may have met rmay also had
conirections to the Saudi Government. Aficr the terrorist attacks, the FBI discovered that, dunng
September 2001, an individual named Salzh al-ITussayen stzyed at the same hote! in Herndon,
Virginia where al-Hazmi was staying at the time. According 10 FBI doc 5 al-Hussayen is

apparently a “Saudi Interior Ministry employee/official " He claimed not to know the hijackers,
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but agents in the FBI's Washington Field Office believed he was being deceptive. The interview

was terminated when al-Hussayen sither passed out or feigned s seizure requiring medical
trealment. He was released from the hospital severzl days later and managed to depart the

United States despite law enforeement efforts to locate snd re-intervizw him.

4

Salch al-FHussayen is the uncle of Samm Omar al-Hussayen. Sanu al-Hussayen is

0
connecied to the Islamic Assemnbly of North America (TANA) and 1s the subject of an FBI

counterterrorism tnvestigation. The FBI has also discoverad that Salel al-Hussayven is a major
conuibur o the LJANA, a non-profit organization based in Michigan thar is dedicated 1o the
spread of Islam worldwide. According to the FRI, A's mission is actually to spread
slamic fundamenialism and Salafist doctnne throughout the United Statzs and the world at
large. The IANA solicits funds from wealthy Saudi benefuctors, extremist islamic Shaykhs, and
suspect non-governmental organizations. Accoréing to FBI documents, IANA has solicited
moocy from Prnince Bandar, but the documents are uaclear as 1o whether Bandar actually

contribuizd money to tlus D'r'"”.'n anon

FBL documents also indicate that several Savd: Naval officers were 1a contact with the
September 11 huyjackers. FBI documents state that the San Diczgo Field Office opened 2
counterierrorism nvestigation on an individual named Osama Nooh, a Savdi Naval officer, due
tu his association with Nawaf al-Hazmi and Khalid al-Mihdber, In addition, Lafi al-Harbi,
another Saudi Naval cfficer, was in telephonic contact with flight 77 hijackers Khalid al-Mihdhar
and Nawaf al-llazmi on nine gccasions from March 11, 2000 to March 27, 2000.

The Jacksonville FBI Field Office 1s conducting an investigation 10 detenmine whether
Saleh Ahmed Bedaiwi, a Saudi Naval officer within its territory was in contact with any of the
oS P T N R A S AR A ST IR R R
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The FBI1 has also discovered some more tennous corniections behwesn
oanel and the hijackers duning the course of the PENTTBOM investigation. For example,
according 1o the FBI, an individual name Fa]te.{i Abdullah Saleh Bakala was close friends with
September 11 hijackers Ahined al-Ghamdi and Famza al-Ghamdi. Bakala previously “worked
5 2 pilot for the Saudi Royal I'a::xilj.. flving Usama Bin Ladin betweea Afghanistan and Saudi
Axzbia during UBL's exile.” In addition, an FBI source stated after Seplember 11 that he/she
was 50% sure that al-Mihdhar was a visitor at an apartment in McLean, Virgmnia that w
occupied in July and August 2001 by Hamad Alotaibi of the Saudi Embassy Military Divisio

FI1 dacuments zlso note that Septembar 11 hizacker Saeed Alghamdi may have also visited the
I -’ #

w

address.

Connections Between Saudi Government Officials in the United States and Other Possible
Tarrorist Qperatives

int Inquiry also reviewed information in FBI files, 1 other possthle

connections between Saudi Government officials and terronst -.)pr:r:_'li\.'cs

For example, accerding to FBI docurnents, there is evidence that hijackers Marwan al-
Shehbu and Mohamuned Atta were in contact with Mobammed Rafigue Quadir Harunam, the
subject of an FBI counterterrorism investigation since 1993 and a close associate of Abdullah

Bin Ladin, who is referred 10 in FBI documents as Usama Bin Ladin's half brother. Atduliah

Bin Ladin, who is the subject of several FBI investigations, is currently in the United S lc'.:..

the Saudi Arabizn Embassy in Washingion, DC as an administrative officer. Abdulizh Bin Ladin

has financed Quadir's company and is listed by Quadir as the emergency contact for Quadir's

children. They are i frequent email and prone contact as well

S =
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According to the FBI, Abdullah Bin Ladin has a number of conmections o tsmunst
organizations. He 15 the President and Director of the World Arab Muslim Youth Association
(WAMY) and the Institute of [5lamic and Arabic Sciences in America Both organizations are
local branches of non-govemmental organizations (NGOs) based in Riyadh, Saudi Arabia
According lo the FBI, there is reason to believe that WAMY is “closely associnted with the
funding and financing of international terrunist activities and tn the past has provided logistieal
support to individueals wishing to fight in the Afghan War.” [n 1998, the CIA published a paper
characterizing WAMY es a NGO that provides funding, logistical suppoit end training with

possibic connections to the Arab Afghans network, Hamas, Algenan extremists, and Philippine

—_— .
militan’s. *

Also of potential interest, at least in retrospect, is the 1999 incident invaiving Mohammed

al-Qudhaeen and Hamdan al-Shalawi. Al-Qudhaecin and al-Shalawi were flying from Phoenix

to Washington, DC to attend 2 party at the Saudi Embassy. Afier they boarded the plane in
Phoenix, they began asking the flight attendants technical questions about the flight that the
fliaht attendants found suspicious. When the plane was in it, al-Qudhaeein asked where 1he

el

hathroom was; one of the flight attendants pointed him to thz back of the plane. Nevertheless,
al-Qudhacein went to the front of the plane and attempted on two occasions o enter the cockpit.
The plane made an emergency landing and the FB1 nvestigated the incident, but decided not to

pursue i prosecution. At the tme, ai-Qudhacein and al-Shalawi claimed that the Saudi Embassy

paid for their airplane fickets.

After the FBI discovered that an individual in Phocux whe was the subject of a
counterierrorism investigation was driving z1-Shaiawi's car, the Bureau epened 2
counterterronsm investigation on al-Shalawi. In November 2000, the FBI recerved reporing
fr:-rn_ that al-Shzlawi had trained at the terorist camps in Afghanistan and had

HLTL

received explosives training to perform “Khobar Towers"-type attacks. Alter the September 11,
2001 attacks, the Phoenix Field Office attached even potentially preater significance o that 1999

incident. A Phoeznix FBI communication explained the theory behind this: “Phoenix FBI now

? According to the FBI's November 18, 2002 response, althougl several officials in WAMY support ul-Qa'ide and
ethur terronst praups, the mtelligence ic insufficient 1o show whether the arganzation as 3 whiole and i senacer
leadership suppont temonsm.
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belteves both men were specifically attempting to test the seeurity procedures of America West

Aurlines in preparation for and in furtherance of UBL/A] Qaeda operations.”
testimony before the Joint Inquiry, the ageat who drafted the “Phoenix EC" stated:

Inapost Y11 warld, 1 went back and looked at thet as possibly being some sort of dry
run. [i 1s curently under investigation.

After September 11, 2001, al-Qudbacin [

In interviews, 2 Phoenix FBI agent stated that Phoen {_
believed that al-Qu! i i ' 3
al-Bayoumi and Bassnan, Heis in the United States as a student and does not have a visidle
means of income. He is in frequent contact with Saudi Government estzhlishments in the United

States and appears to be very invelved in the affairs of the lecal Saudi community, Heruns 2
“Saudi Club" in Phoenix, and assists Seudi students in the area. The FBI has 2lso developed
information that al-Qudhaecin was receiving money frem the Saudi Government but, 2s of

August 2002, had not obtained (1e relevant bank records for review. The FBI's Phoenix Field

Oifice has speculated that al-Qudhacein and others may be [RGB

There are other indications in FBI files that elements of the Saud! Goverunent may have
provided support to temrorist nerwarks. For example, the FBI had identified the Thn Tamiyzh
Mosque in Culver City as a site of extremist-ielated activity both before and afier Septemnber 11.
Several subjects of San Diego investigation prnor to September 11 had close connections to the
mosque. Based on interviews and review of FBI files, San Diego FBI agents belicved at the time
that these subjects were laundering money through this mosqus first to Somah nen-profit

oreanizations and then to other entities affiliated with Usama Bin Ladin




- A N - % - - 4 youtrumweeblycom

[n approximately 1998, the FBI became aware of millions of dollars in wire tronsfers
from the Somali community in San Diego to Al Barakasr Trading Company snd other businesses
affiliated with Usama Bin Ladin. At the time, the funding appeared ta be originating from the
local Somali community in the form of donations to various Somali non-profits. [lowever, the
FBI now belicves that the some of the funding actuaily originated from Saudi Arabia and that
both the Ibn Tamiyah Mosque in Los Angeles and the Islammic Center of San Diego were
involved in laundering the money.

Acconding to the forme: FBI agent in Sen Dicgo whio was iuvelved b this mvestigation,
this scheme may allow the Saudi Government (p provide al-Qa'ida with funding through covert
or indirect means. In his October 9, 2002 testimony the former agent commented on the possible
money laundenng:

My guess Saudi-it’s connected somehow with the Saudis. And knowing that probably

70-80 percent of the population of Szudi Arabia support Usama Bin Ladin, it might be an

indication,

There are also indications of Saudi governmental supporn for terronist activity through
charitable organizations. The Saudi-based Umm al-Qura Islamic Chanlable Foundation (UQ) 1s
an Islamic non-governmental orgauization linked to terrorist support activities. According 10 a

May 2002 Defense Intelligence Terrorisn Summary, the UQ's activities in support of terrorism

include: suspicious money transfers, document forgery, providing jobs to wanted terronist
suspects, and financing travel for youths 10 attend jihad training. The Defens: communication
notes that since September 2001, UQ couriers have transported over $330,000 in cash, most of
which they received from Saud: Einbassies in the Far East. In January 2002, UQ administrator
Yassir El-Sayid Mohammed traveled to Thailand to pick up appreximately $200,000 from the
Saudi Embassy in Bangkok. In early November 2001, the personal assistant to the UQ
administrator traveled to Kuala Lumpur for a meeting at the Saudi Arabian Embassy. He
retumned with 1ens of thousands of doliars, according to the Department of Dafensc.

CIA, Treasury, and FBI officials have all expressed their concern about the al-Haramain
Foundation’s ties to both the Ssudi Government and terrorist activity According to the FBI’s
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Nuvember 18, 2002 response, the al-Haramain Islamic Foundation (HIF) has clear ties to the
Sandi Government, and mtcliigence reporting suggests it 1s providing [inancial and logstical

support to al-Q2'ida. In 1993, HIF established its U.S.-based office in Ashland, Oregon, and that

office has sincce received approxamately $700,000 from the parent affices in Saudi Arabia. The
FBI has a pending investigation of HIF and the activitics of the Portland HIF Office. As
discussed above, the FBI has located commespondence between el-Bayoumi and the HIF. From
the docurnents, it is clear that HIF was interested in appomting the inam of the mosque m Cajon,

Califormg, that al-Bayoumi managed.

MR. AUFHAUSER: Sccond, and this 15 important point, it also nses out of Rack's
testunony, on al-Haramain, the two brench offices that we took z public and joint action
against, al-Haramzin really does represent a sigrificant issue for the PCC and for temronst
financing and for the United States pelicy. It is, of course, the largest, 1 think the largest
Islamic charity in the world. lts name is synonymuus with chanty in the Islamic world.
Iis direct overseers are members of the Royal Family; significant contributors are
members of the Royal Family. We don't have 2 grest deal of intzlligence on the
headquarters, about whether they are knowingly assisting peopie in al-Qa'ida and others;
but in significant branch oifices yet to be designated und under current investigation, we
have ample evidencs that large cash amaunts are being couriered to those branch offices,
that large wire uansfers of money are being sent tu those offices, that a great dea! of the
money is being dissipeted through misspending, unaccounted for, and finally, that those
offices have significant contacts with exiremists, Islamic extremists,

CIA officizls recently testified that they are making progress on their investigations of al.

Hurgmain:

A year ago we had 2 iot of reponing suggesting branch offices were tied to al-
Qa'ida...Over the last yvear we developed a lot of intzlhzence and law enforcement
information and we prepared a paper sbout a month, stx weeks ago which assembled all
of that...Tkat paper gave us the first ciear indication that the head of the central office is
complieit in supporting terrorism, and 1t &lsa raised questions zbout Prince Navel.

Finally, _, the subject of Phoenix and Portland FBI counterterrorism

investigations, also hus close ties to @ member of the Seud: royal family. [ no longer

>

resides in the United States, but is still the subject of an FBI investigation. The FBI opened an
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investigation clf- an employee of Saudi Arabian Airlines, in 1999 after receiving
informetior. [ i 50 Ladin hevtenant Abu Zubaica had been
in contact with a telephone number assoclated w'th- in Portland. In May 2001, two
individuals were arrested in Bahrain and later admitted they were on their way to blow vp U.S
facilitics 10 Saudi Arabia. One of them had a passport that had been

B : FBI's Phoenix Field Offics also received source reporting in 1999 !*'11-
was checking security at the Southwest border and discussing the possibility of infilirating

1adividuals into the United States,

The FBJ has developed information that [l bas close ties with oue of the Saudi
accompanies him on many trips, including travel to the United States. According lo
was recently interrogated at the detention factlity at
Guantanamo Bay. He informed the FBI that [ 2ot the job at Szudi Arabizn Airlines through
his contacts. H=said h:J_- did aot eam much money in this'job, bur that he “had another

source of income through 2 Saudi prinee” named Khelid al-3andar. Acserding to [ RS

_ performed miscellansous tasks for the Prince, such as handling real estats mesters

and o aces with the Prince, ingluding
Europe, and often to the United Arab Emirates. _tlm:lc the cryptic comment
that nobody “knew cverything about i~ Althougt his name was on the State
Department’s watchlist, [ T v2s 2ppuarently able w circumvent the Customs Service

and the Immigration and Naturalization Service because he was raveling with the Saudi pring

The FBI only icamed of the trp afier the fact, Agents in the FBI's Portland Field Offics
expressed their concem that - and athers were using their status as Saudi Arabian
Airlines employees as @ cover to cnable them o transport weapons in and oul of the United

States.
Lack of Saudi Cooperation in Counterterrorism Investigotions
In testimony and interviews, & nwaber of FBI agents and CIA officers complained to the

Joint Inquiry about a lack of Saudi cooperation in terrorism investigations both before end after

the September 11 auacks. For example, 2 veteran New York FBI agent stated that, from his

SN S N * + ¢4
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point of view, the Saudis bave been useless and obstructionist for years. In this agent's opinion,
the Saudis will only act when it is in their self-interest.

When a high-level [JJJJJ officer was asked how the Scptember 11 atiacks might have been
prevented, he ciled greater Saudi cooperation, pointing to an example from the summer of 2001,
when the U.S. Government requested Saudi assistance, with no success. In May 2001, the U.S.
Government became aware that ag ‘ndividual in Saudi Arabia was in contact witk Abu Zubaida
and was most likely aware of an upcoming al-Qa'ida operanon. The U.S. Governmens: pressured
tac Ssudi Govemment to locate him. The Saudis informed tho 1.8, Govermnmant thot they
required additional information to do so. The U.S Governmeni agency that had originally
learmed of this individual's knowledge refused to provide the Saudis with additional information
because it would reveal sources and methods. The National Security Council also wied to
pressure the Saudis, but the Saudis would nol cooperate without the additionn] information.

According to some FBI personnel, this type of response is typicel from the Saudis. For
sxample, one FBI agent described ane investigation after September 11 in which he provided the
Saudi Government with copies of the subjects’ Saudi passports. The Saudi Government

maintamned that they had no recerd of the subjects.

According to the former Chief of Alec Station, the unit in the DCT's Couaterterronist
Center cstablished in 1996 o focus specifically on Usama Bin Ladic, it was clear from about

1906 that the Saudi Government would not cooperate with the United States on matters relating
to Usama Bin Ladin. There is a May 1996 memo from the DCI's Counterterrorist Center [JJJili}
[l stating that the Saudis had stopped providing background informution or otker assistance on
Bin Ladin because Bin Ladin had “too much information about official Saudi dealings with
Eslamic extrenusts in the 1980s for Rivadh to deliver him into U.S. hands.” In 2 June 1997

memo to the DCI, Alec Station reemphasized the lack of Saudi cooperation and stated that there
was liltle prospect of future cooperation regarding Bin Ladin. The farmer Chief of Alec Station
thought that the U.S. Goverament's hope of eventually obtaining Saudi cooperation: was
unrealistic because Saudi assistance to the U S, Govermmnent on this mader was contrary (o Saudi
national intercsts.
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I =i o tis ssut on Oclaber ,

-On the issue of al-Qa’ida and Saudi intelligence, that gocs back lo our ¢fforts to interact
with the Saudi to get them to help us on investigating al-Qg'ida. .. for the most part it was
a very troubled relationship where the Saudis were not providing us gmickly or very
vigorously with response to it. Somctimes they did, mnany times they didn’t. It was just
very slaw in coming.

Both FBI aad CIA personnet cited an individual named Madani al-Tavyib as a specific
case in which the Saudis were upcooperative. The CIA and the FBI bad been pressuring the
Saudis for years for permission to 1alk to al-Tayyib. Accordingto the former head of ALEC
Station, al-Tayyib managed all of Bin Ladin's finances when Bin Ladin was in Sudan, and any
expense over $1,000 had to be approved by al-Tayvib. Al-Tayyib moved to London i 1996 to
work with Khalid al-Fawwaz, another important al-Qa’ida figure who bas since been arrested. In
the summer of 1996, al-Tayyab returned to Saudi Arabia. The Saudis continuously refused the
EDI's and the C1A's requests to talk o al-Tayyib, stating, in the words of an FBI agent, that al-
Tayyib was “just a poor man who lost his leg. He doesn't know anything.”

The former chief of Alec Station also cited the example of Mohammed Janial Khalifa.
Khalifa is Bin Ladin's brother-in-law and an important figure in al-Qa’ida. The U.S.
Government arrested Khalifz in the United States in 1994, Khalifa had becn sentonced (o death
in gbsentia by the Jordanian Government for his role in 2 bombing in Jordan. Ay a result, the
.S, agreed 1o extradite him to Jordan. The Jordanians then retumed him to Saudi Arabia. In the
opinion of the CLA officer, the Saudis "bought off” the Jordanians for the return of Khalilz.
According 1o the CIA officer, when Khalifa subsequently armived in Saudi Arabia, he was met by

at least one important government afficial. Khalifa naw works for a Riyadh.-hazed NGO and
ravels and operates frecly.

The General Counsel of the U.S. Treasury Depariment testified at the July 23, 2002
hearing zbou! the lack of Saudi cooperation with the U.S.:

i
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There is an almost intuitive sense, however, that things are not being volunteered. So ]
want {o fully miorm you about at, that we h:n‘z 10 ask aad we have to seck and we have ©
strive. Twill give you one-and-a-hall examples, The first is, afies some penod, the Saudis
have agreed to the designation of 2 man named Julaydin, who 13 notoriously involived in
all of this; and his designation will be public within the next 10 days. They came {orward
to us 2 weeks ago and said, ckay, we think we should go forward with the designation
and z frecze order against Mr. Julaydin, We asked, what do you have on him? Because
they certainly know what we have on him, because we shared it as we tried {0 convince

thern that they ought to join us. The answer back was, nothing new.

MR. BEREUTER.: Do you believe that?

MR- AUFITAUSER: Nop, ] thunk that taxes credulity, or there is anot

being told.

N€r Motive We are not

Status cf the U.5, Intelligence Community’s Investigntions into Conneclions Betweon
Terrorism and Saadi Gt‘l\'{ rnment Oificials

Bath the FBI and the CIA have informed the Commitiees that they are treating the Saudi

issue senously. According to the November 18, 2002 FBI response, the FBI and CIA have

established a working zroup to look into the Saudi issuc. The FBI formed 4 squad at the

Washington Field Oifice | NN (o i~ vcsticaic this issue and [ D
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However, bath the FBI and the CIA still have only a limited voderstan

Government's tics to temronist elements. In the October 9, 2002 closed hearing, Director Mueller
slated:

If T have one prebimi nary rote OFC.'.lllliOﬂ, it is that at this poiat there are more quc astians
L $
] onclusions before we k:‘.-::-w a lot

than answers, and [ would czuton agmnst jumping to c
more.

A documnent located by the Joint Inquiry Staff confirms that the FBI's Washington Field

Office 1s still in the early stages of focusing on these investigations, 1n an August 15, 2002,

communication, a field office agent stated that ‘—

P s T R - o e
that same document, the Washington Field Office askcd—

testisnony that t'm- understanding of this issue 15 limited as well

With regard to the speeific question of have we seer audi intelligence services

supporting terror groups, T think the record is not clear at ail on that.

Doth the FBI and CIA recognized the possibility that individuals conneeted to the Szudi

Government may be providing support to terrorists.

So there is certainly a good, good chance that there are sympathizers or exremnists,

sympathizers possibly for al-Qa’ida within the secunty services,

Abu Zubaydah said he's confident tha
in the Unuted States and that 2l-Qa'ida and Usama Bin Ladin are pamiculariy-

tal-Qa'ida must bave contact certainly with Saudis
they

[ e e e e e e e e —— e —— |
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invest significant energy in cultivaiing what Abu Zubaydah called gooed relationships
with Saudis of all standing.. He said bin Ladin 15 very pleased when Saudis in the
military, those successful in business and those close 1o the royal family 1o lend active
support to his cause. He said bin Luadin activel ¥ seeks out such relationships

Qther CIA and FBI officials echoed these remarks in recent Congressional (esimony.

B o

What we find er'uhli'u' ahout the cases that we learmed about from FBI, hoth the Los
Angeles cases and some of the cases that the Washinglon }-"'::id Office has looked at,
vhich you’ re seeing Saudi money gomg to people, is that it fits sort of 2 pattern that
we've seen in terms of direct payments from the Saudis, the Saudi Government's
longstanding support for very undamentalist Wehabi and Salafi chantics and movements
around the world, which in a sense you see the money 1s poing 10 {undamentalists and
you would be very sumprised if some of it dousn™ bleed aver inte terronst
support...We've had a lol D"'suspfciora before September 11 which we docemented n a
number of 2nt papers, &nd again it’s a Jot of smoke and the issues that come up are
who knows about the payments, on whosc behalf are (;

peinz made on behalf of the central povernment or aze ..1 By

ora person. Do the pecple who are making the payments know \"L... s "hl.pp.::‘.m'“ to the
money? 1{ they do know what's happening, why are they making the payments? Isita
form of blackmail? Do they recognize the terrorist support? There's the issue of are they
regulating themselves as well as are they doing the due difigznce that they ought to.

FBI Executive Assistant Director Pasquale D' Amuro testified at that same hearing.

To date | c:m't it here and tell you that those ties go back, that we can provs that the
X = I

e Mas

.,u:l.lﬁl lf]Vﬂ.. l']‘.l]‘v' i\ ‘*PJI’L.G"I]".“ lermr I.'}I"l‘;'i""l }_'ZL.; LlILa ‘h CI IUU‘.,“. 31 Llﬂl' Hiat we are
coaducting several investigations te Iry to determine what other information is out there,

What 15 clear 15 that the FBI did not veat the Saudis as a counterie rrcm::ml

R 1< o7 to Seprember 11, 2001
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Michzel Rolince, the former head of the International Tetrorism Operalions Section at

FBI testified

The answer to your question is pre-9/11 there were not any significant preliminary
inquiry or full investigations, with relatively few exceptions, conducted by the FBI
looking at ‘ia‘.tdi— or susport to terrorism...I'm not going to stand
here, Ms. Hill, and tell you in any way, shag fi

The former Assistant Special Agent in Charge in San Dicgo confirmed this in his

1estitnony:

v R T R
were not a country icentified by the Statz Department as a slate sponsor of terorism.
And the theme or the common modus operandi that we saw in San Diego was that if therz

M:H— there, their primary objestive was to monitor dissidents  the
interest of protccting the roval family. So they were not viewed as an numcal threat to
national sccunty

Iz the Qctober 9, 2002 ¢losed hearing, Director Muslier zcknowiedged that he became
awarc of some of the facts regarding the Saudi issue only 23 a result of the investigative work of

the Joint Inguiry Staff:

I'm suying the sequence of events here, [ think the staff probed end, as aresult of the
. 1

probing, some facts came to light here and to me, frankly, that had not come to hight
before, and perhaps would not h:m, come to light had the staff riol probed. That's what
I'tn telling you. So I'm agreeing w'lh you that the staff prubing braught out facts that
may not have come to this Committee.”

Scnator Dewinc: But what you're also saying, though, is that that probing then brought

cis to your attention

Director Muelier: Yes.




